2018-2020

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE

MIDDLESEX BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

MIDDLESEX ADMINISTRATORS AND SUPERVISORS ASSOCIATION

| | TABLE OF CONTENTS | PAGE | |
|------------|--|------|--|
| | Preamble | 1 | |
| Article 1 | Recognition | 1 | |
| Article 2 | Negotiation of Successor Agreement | 1 | |
| Article 3 | Grievance Procedures | 2 | |
| Article 4 | Rights of Administrators | 4 | |
| Article 5 | Board Rights and Responsibilities | 4 | |
| Article 6 | Insurance Protection | 5 | |
| Article 7 | Contractual Year | 6 | |
| Article 8 | Sick Leave | 8 | |
| Article 9 | Leaves of Absence | 9 | |
| Article 10 | Promotions and Transfers | 11 | |
| Article 11 | Evaluation | 12 | |
| Article 12 | Salaries | 12 | |
| Article 13 | Employment | 13 | |
| Article 14 | Non-Administrative Duties | 13 | |
| Article 15 | Professional Development and Educational Improvement | 13 | |
| Article 16 | Duration | 15 | |
| | Training Levels | 16 | |
| Appendix A | Salary Guides | 17 | |

PREAMBLE

This agreement is made and entered into by and cettleer the Board of Education of the Borough of Middlesex, New Jersey, hereinafter referred to as the Board and the Middlesex Administrators and Supervisors Association, hereinafter referred to as the Association."

Article 1 RECOGNITION

1.1 Unit

The Board hereby recognizes the Middlesex Administrators and Supervisors Association of Middlesex Borough as the majority representative for collective negotiations concerning terms and conditions of employment for the following personnel employed by the Board, but excluding all other:

Principal
Assistant Principal
District Director of Guidance
District Director of Special Services
District Director of Athletics
Supervisor of Curriculum & Instruction

1.2 Definition of Administrator

Unless otherwise indicated, the term "administrator" when used hereinafter in this agreement shall refer to all employees in the negotiating unit as listed above.

Article 2 NEGOTIATION OF SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT

2.1 Negotiation Procedure

The parties agree to enter into collective negotiations over a successor agreement in accordance with N.J.S.A. 34:13A et. seq. in a good faith effort to reach agreement on all matters concerning the terms and conditions of administrators' employment. Such negotiations shall begin not later than December 1 of the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which this Agreement expires. Any Agreement so negotiated shall apply to all administrators, be reduced to writing, at the joint expense of both parties, and be ratified by the Board and the Association.

During negotiations, the Board and the Association shall present relevant data, exchange points of view, and make proposals and counterproposals. The Board shall make available to the Association, in response to reasonable requests made by the Association from time to time, available public information and data concerning the Middlesex Schools which the Association may require in connection with negotiations. Nothing herein contained shall impose any obligation on the Board to disclose any information which may be classified as privileged and or confident.

- 2.3 Neither party in any negotiations shall have control over the selection of the negotiating representatives of other parties. The parties pledge that their representative shall be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals and make counterproposals in the course of negotiations. All meetings between the parties for the purposes of negotiations shall be scheduled whenever possible, to take place when the Association and Board representatives are free from assigned duties and other responsibilities. When, however, the parties mutually determine that the meeting shall be scheduled during the school day, the administrators involved shall be excused from their duties and suffer no loss of pay.
- 2.4 The agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing executed by both parties.

Article 3 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

3.1 Definitions

- 3.1.1 The term "grievance" means a complaint or claim that there has been an improper application, interpretation or violation of any term or provision of this contract, administrative decisions, Board policy or state statute affecting employees' terms and conditions of employment.
- 3.1.2 Aggrieved Person

An "Aggrieved Person" is the person(s) or the Association making the claim.

- 3.1.3 The term "grievance" and the procedure relative thereto shall not be deemed applicable to:
 - a. Any matter which is either beyond the scope of the Board's authority or limited to unilateral action by the Board alone.
 - A complaint of a non-tenured administrator which arose by reason of his/her not being re-employed.
 - c. All matters relating to appointment, reappointment, transfer, tenure, promotion, the school calendar, and other matters which are strictly the prerogative of the Board of Education.

3.2 Purpose

The goal of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, equitable solutions to problems which may arise affecting administrators. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept informal and confidential at any level of the procedure.

3.3 Grievance Procedure

3.3.1 Time Limitation

The number of days indicated at each level should be considered as a maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limits specified may, however, be extended by mutual agreement.

3.3.2 Level One - Superintendent (Informal)

An administrator with a grievance shall discuss it with the Superintendent either directly or together with the Association's designated representative, with the objective of resolving the matter informally. This discussion must take place within thirty (30) days of the administrator becoming aware of the grievance.

3.3.3 Level Two - Superintendent (Formal)

If the aggrieved person is not satisfied with the informal disposition of the grievance at Level One, or if no decision has been rendered within ten (10) school days after the presentation of the grievance, the written grievance shall be submitted to the Superintendent.

3.3.4 Level Three - Middlesex Board of Education

If the aggrieved person is not satisfied with the disposition of his/her grievance at Level Two, or if no decision has been rendered within ten (10) school days after the grievance was presented to the Superintendent, he/she may, within five (5) school days after a decision by the Superintendent or fifteen (15) school days after the grievance was presented to the Superintendent, whichever is sooner, submit the grievance to the Middlesex Board of Education. The Board shall investigate the grievance and may conduct a hearing, or request the submission of additional written material. If a hearing is held, it shall be held within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the grievance. If a hearing is held, all parties in interest shall have the right to be heard. The Board shall make the determination within thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of the grievance if no hearing is held or within thirty (30) calendar days of the hearing, and shall notify all parties of its determination.

3.3.5 Rights and Obligations of Administrators

- a. Any aggrieved person may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself, or at his/her option, by a representative selected or approved by the Association.
- b. It is required that all administrators, including the grievant, continue their normal duties diligently under the direction of the Superintendent, regardless of the pendency of any grievance, until such grievance is properly determined.

3.4 Level Four

If the aggrieved person(s) or the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Three, the Association may appeal in writing within the next ten (10) calendar days to binding arbitration. Grievances concerning the interpretation, application or alleged violation of the written agreement shall be subject to binding arbitration. The Board's decision shall not be arbitrated in any matter for which a specific method of

review is prescribed and expressly set forth by law or any rule or regulation of the State Commissioner of Education; or a complaint of a non-tenured administrator not being reemployed; or a complaint by any administrator occasioned by appointment to, retention in or lack of retention in any position for which tenure is either not possible or not required; or a complaint by an administrator arising from his/her assignment, transfer or reassignment; or a matter which, according to law, is exclusively within the discretion of the Board; or warnings, letters of reprimand and/or criticism of an administrator's performance.

The arbitrator shall be selected from the Public Employment Relations Commission. The arbitrator will confer with the parties and hold hearings promptly and will issue a decision not later than twenty (20) days after the close of the hearing. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall set forth findings of fact, the arbitrator's reasoning and conclusions. The decision shall be considered binding by both parties. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator are the only costs which will be shared by the two parties, and such costs will be shared equally. Any other costs shall be borne by the party incurring them. Where, however, the grievant elects to proceed without the Association's concurrence, the costs shall not be borne or shared by the Association, but the fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne and shared equally between the grievant and the Board. Time lost by any grievant and/or his representative(s) due to arbitration proceedings shall not be charged to personal time nor shall there be any loss in pay. University

Article 4 RIGHTS OF ADMINISTRATORS

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict any administrator's rights he/she may have under New Jersey Laws.

Any derogatory criticism of an administrator by the Superintendent or a Board member, and any derogatory criticism of the Superintendent or a Board member by an administrator, shall be made in private, so far as possible, so as to avoid embarrassment to the individual being criticized.

Employees shall have the right upon reasonable notice of request to review personally the contents of his/her personnel file in the presence of the Superintendent or his/her designee.

No material derogatory to an employee's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in his/her personnel file unless the employee has had an opportunity to review the material. The employee shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material and his/her answer shall be reviewed by the Superintendent and attached to the file copy.

Article 5 **BOARD RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

The Board on its own behalf and on behalf of the citizens of the Borough of Middlesex, 5.1 Middlesex County, New Jersey, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitations, all powers, rights, authorities, duties, and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and constitution of the State of New Jersey and the United States.

5.2 The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authorities, duties, and responsibilities of the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices, in furtherance thereof, and use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms hereof in conformance with the constitution and laws of the State of New Jersey and the United States.

Article 6 INSURANCE PROTECTION

- 6.1. The Board shall provide health care insurance protection as designated below:
 - 6.1.1 Employees shall have a choice of one of the following according to the attached benefit plan description:
 - 6.1.1.1. (POS) Employees may elect the POS coverage subject to the required Chapter 78 employee contributions.
 - 6.1.1.2. (PPO) Employees may elect the PPO coverage subject to the required Chapter 78 employee contributions.
 - 6.1.1.3. (EPO) Employees may elect the EPO coverage subject to the required Chapter 78 employee contributions. Upon ratification of this contract, eligible employees who choose this coverage will receive EPO coverage upon the effective date of July 1, 2013.
 - Full coverage for all major medical costs subject to deductible and coinsurance contributions. Effective July 1, 2011, all employees will pay a
 percentage of the "cost of coverage," which, for all non-SEHBP districts, is
 defined as the premium or periodic charges for health/medical, vision
 (District does not currently provide), dental and prescription plan coverage,
 based on employees/members' base salary and level of coverage chosen,
 pursuant to P.L. 2011, c. 78.
 - Provisions of the health care insurance program shall be detailed in master policies and contracts agreed upon by the Board and the Association and shall be available for inspection in the Administrative offices.
- The Board shall provide family dental and prescription insurance plans for all unit members. The pharmacy co-payment for brand-name prescription drugs shall be eighteen dollars (\$18.00) and the pharmacy co-payment for generic drugs shall be thirteen dollars (\$13.00). For mail-in prescriptions, the co-payment for brand-name prescription drugs shall be thirteen dollars (\$13.00) and the co-payment for generic drugs shall be eight dollars (\$8.00).
- 6.3 Employees shall be offered the option of waiving benefits as set forth in the Agreement. Any employee who executes an appropriate waiver will, receive the

following cash incentives paid in two (2) installments, December and June of said year:

For the 2018-2020 school year the waiver will apply as follows:

| Coverage | Single | Parent & Child(ren) | Husband & Wife | Family |
|----------|---------|---------------------|----------------|---------|
| Medical | \$1,650 | \$2,800 | \$3,300 | \$4,500 |
| Rx Drug | \$700 | \$930 | \$1,330 | \$1,800 |
| Dental | \$175 | \$240 | \$240 | \$450 |

New hires who select to waive health benefits shall receive a prorated payment. Reentry to health coverage shall take place July 1, after an employee elects to not participate, or if there is a change in marital status, upon sixty (60) days written notice to the Board.

For Employees new to the District hired after January 1, 2015:

In order to be eligible for a waiver, must waive all benefits including medical, prescription, and dental. Waivers shall be as follows:

| Single | Parent & Children | Spousal/Partner | Family |
|---------|-------------------|-----------------|---------|
| \$1,700 | \$2,000 | \$3,000 | \$4,000 |

- The Board shall provide a Flexible Spending Account in accordance with Code Section 125 of the IRS for all Association members at the maximum employee contribution as provided by this law.
- 6.5 Effective July 1, 2011, all employees will be obligated to contribute towards the cost of health coverage provided only to the extent required by P.L. 2011, c. 78.

Article 7 CONTRACTUAL YEAR

7.1 Work Year

The work year shall be twelve (12) months (July 1st to June 30th).

7.2 <u>Vacation</u>

Total paid vacation days will not exceed twenty (20) days. Paid vacation days will be determined on a basis of 1 and 2/3 days per total contractual months. Administrators hired on or after July 1 shall earn vacation time at the rate of 1 and 2/3 days per month for each full month of service until June 30 of that year. If a first year administrator, who begins employment as of July 1, takes no vacation days during the year, he/she will then have twenty (20) days available for use

during the second year of employment. However, if the administrator does take vacation during the first year, it will reduce the number of days available during the second year by the appropriate number of days. An administrator may not take vacation time which has not yet been earned. Upon retirement, resignation or death, the administrator or estate shall receive a lump sum payment of the per diem rate of accumulated days. An administrator may be permitted to carry over a maximum of ten (10) days of vacation time through August 31st of a new fiscal year. Thereafter, for the period September 1 through June 30 of that fiscal year, five (5) carryover vacation days. The maximum vacation allowance (including carryovers) in any one year shall be thirty (30) days through August 31 of a fiscal year and thereafter for the remainder of the fiscal year twenty-five (25) days.

7.2.1 Administrators will not be eligible to take vacation during the new teacher orientation days scheduled two (2) weeks prior to the opening of school. Orientation days shall be established at the time when the annual school calendar is approved.

7.3 Holidays

- Administrators will be required to work on the following State holidays: Columbus Day, Lincoln's and Washington's Birthdays, Veteran's Day and Election Day. The administrators will be entitled to take four (4) recess days to compensate for four of the five State holidays which they are required to work. The paid holiday of President's Day as indicated below will compensate for the fifth State holiday. The four additional recess days are to be taken when school is not in session for students and teachers. Administrators are required to obtain approval of the Superintendent prior to taking any recess days. Requests for recess days will be denied only if there is a demonstrable need.
- 7.3.2 Administrators shall receive the following paid holidays:

Independence Day
Labor Day
NJEA Convention (2)
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve
Christmas Day
Day after Christmas
New Year's Eve
New Year's Day
Martin Luther King's Day
President's Day
Good Friday
Easter Monday
Memorial Day

Administrators shall obtain prior approval from the Superintendent as to the periods of vacation time requested so that vacation days may be coordinated within the school district.

- 7.4.1 If a day is rescheduled or made-up on "Middlesex Public Schools Annual School Calendar" due to emergency and/or weather-related situations, administrators shall report to work without additional compensation even on an otherwise paid holiday, unless the administrator takes a recess day as set forth in 7.3.1 holidays; or a personal day as set forth in 9.2; or a vacation day as set forth in 7.2, which shall not be subject to prior approval.
- 7.5 In the event that earned vacation days in excess of the five (5) allowable carryover days cannot be taken prior to June 30th because of school responsibilities or because the Superintendent denied the request(s), then the administrator will be permitted to carry over all those accumulated days into the next fiscal year. Under the circumstances outlined above, the accumulated vacation day total may exceed the maximum twenty-five day maximum allowance outlined in Section 7.2.

Article 8 SICK LEAVE

- Administrators shall be entitled to one (1) sick leave day per month as of the first official day of said school year, whether or not they report for duty on that day. Unused sick leave days shall be accumulated from year to year with no maximum limit. Total accumulation and transfer of sick leave days is restricted to those accrued within this district, unless otherwise approved by the Board.
- In the event an administrator has exhausted his/her accumulated sick leave, personal and vacation days, he/she may be paid at a rate of seventy-five percent (75%) of his contracted salary per day for each extra day for a period of one year.
- 8.3 Administrators, hired prior to June 30, 2006, who retire in accordance with the provisions of the Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund shall be compensated for unused sick days as outlined herein.

Administrators hired after June 30, 2006, in order to be entitled to the compensation for unused sick leave outlined herein, must have been employed in the district for ten (10) years, five (5) of those years as an administrator.

Administrators hired after July 1, 2011, in order to be entitled to the compensation for unused sick leave at the rates outlined herein, must have been employed in the district for (10) years, five (5) of those years as an administrator.

- A retiring administrator with less than or equal to one hundred (100) days of accumulated sick leave at the time of retirement shall be entitled to payment of supplemental compensation at the rate of fifty-five dollars (\$55.00) for each day of accumulated sick leave.
- A retiring administrator with more than one hundred (100) but less than or equal to one hundred fifty (150) days of accumulated sick leave at the time of retirement shall be entitled to payment of supplemental compensation at the rate of seventy-five dollars (\$75.00) for each day of accumulated sick leave.

- A retiring administrator, with more than one hundred fifty (150) days of accumulated sick leave at the time of retirement shall be entitled to payment of supplemental compensation at the rate of one hundred dollars (\$100.00) to a maximum of two hundred (200) days (\$20,000) or the maximum of fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000) depending on the date of hire.
- A retiring administrator, with two hundred (200) or more days of accumulated sick leave and thirty or more years of service in the district in any capacity and who notifies the Board of Education of his/her intention to retire six (6) months prior to retirement will receive a sick leave compensation payment of twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000) or fifteen thousand dollars (\$15,000) depending on the date of hire.
- For employees hired prior to July 1, 2011, the maximum payment for accumulated sick leave shall not exceed twenty-five thousand dollars (25,000). For employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, the maximum payment for accumulated sick leave shall not exceed fifteen thousand dollars (15,000) consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:30-3.6.

Sick leave supplemental compensation payment shall be made upon retirement in accordance with law and regulation.

In the event of death of a retirement or deferred retirement eligible administrator, as defined by TPAF, the administrator's estate shall be paid his/her compensation for accumulated sick leave upon the basis of Article 8 (8.3.1-8.3.4) unless prohibited by law.

Article 9 LEAVES OF ABSENCE

9.1 On the job injuries

- 9.1.1 All injuries incurred while performing school duties, regardless of how minor they may seem, must be reported to the school nurse within one (1) working day from the time of said injuries.
- 9.1.2 The school nurse will check the injury and make a record of the injury on the first work day that both the school nurse and the administrator are at work.
- An employee, after being absent from his/her post due to on-the-job injury, must present a report from the doctor certifying that the employee is able to return to work. Such report is to be given to the Secretary to the Board of Education through the school nurse.
- 9.1.4 Whenever any employee is absent from his post of duty as a result of a personal injury caused by an accident arising out of and in the course of his/her employment, the provision of Title 18A:30-2.1 will apply.

9.1.5 In the event that any portion of Section 9, is contrary to law, the parties herewith agree to utilize the provisions of State Law in lieu thereof.

9.2 Personal Leave

Administrators may be absent from school duties for four (4) days without loss of pay for personal matters which require such absence during school hours. Formal application to an immediate superior for personal leave shall be made at least five (5) school days before taking such leave, except in the case of emergency. No reason need be stated for taking of personal leave, other than that it is being taken under this section. All unused personal days in any contractual year shall be added to the employee's accumulated sick leave with an annual maximum carryover of fifteen (15) days.

9.3 Bereavement Leave

- 9.3.1 Administrators may be absent from school without loss of pay for a period not to exceed five (5) days upon death in the immediate family following the death unless alternative arrangements are made with the Superintendent. The immediate family is defined to include the employee's spouse, civil union partner, parent, spouse's parent, child, sibling, and any other family member living in the immediate household.
- 9.3.2 Administrators may be absent from school duties without loss of pay for a period of three (3) days because of the death of a near relative. A near relative shall be construed to mean an administrator's son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, spouse's grandmother, spouse's grandfather, aunt or uncle, grandchildren, step family members, niece or nephew.

9.4 Other Leaves of Absence

Other leaves of absence with or without pay may be granted by the Board for good reasons. In the event of serious illness to the administrator's spouse, child, parent, or any member of the immediate household, special consideration may be given by the Board.

- 9.4.1 All leave benefits to which the employee was entitled at the time his/her leave of absence commenced, including unused accumulated sick leave, will be restored to him/her upon his/her return.
- 9.4.2 The Board of Education shall provide health-care insurance coverage as indicated in Article 6 to any administrator granted a leave of absence without pay up to a maximum of one year, subject to the contributions required pursuant to P.L. 2011, C.78. Contribution shall be based upon the administrator's annual salary immediately preceding the commencement of the leave.

9.5 Maternity and Child Care Leave

Administrators may apply for a leave of absence without pay for the birth or adoption of a child, or to care for that child, in accordance with the provisions of the New Jersey Family Leave Act and the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act.

An administrator requesting sick leave for disability due to pregnancy must notify the Superintendent as soon as possible after confirmation of such pregnancy. A mutually agreed upon beginning date of such leave shall be established by the Superintendent and the Board on the advice of her physician. The Board may remove the employee from her duties if she is unable or unwilling to perform all of her job responsibilities. Disputes as to physical incapacity shall be decided by the employee's physician and the board's physician, or in the event of disagreement, by a third physician jointly selected by the Board and the employee or by the Middlesex County Medical Society if no agreement is reached on the selection of the third physician.

The administrator shall return to work, unless extended leave for child care has been granted, as soon as she is physically able to perform her duties. The Board may require a certification from the employee's physician as to her medical and physical fitness. The employee shall notify the Superintendent as promptly as possible of the date of her anticipated return to work.

An administrator may apply for an unpaid leave of absence not to exceed twelve (12) months for the care of a new born child or newly adopted child. The Board may grant or deny the request in whole or in part in its discretion, and in the best interest of the school district.

Failure to return to work promptly upon recovery from the disability due to pregnancy or to give the required notice of intent to return from child care leave shall be deemed a resignation from employment.

Upon returning from such leave, an administrator may be returned to the same or an equivalent position as held prior to said leave.

Article 10 PROMOTIONS AND TRANSFERS

10.1 Promotions

Whenever possible, the Board will inform the Association regarding long range plans to create new administrative positions, or, if possible, to give advance notice when qualifications for existing positions will be substantially changed.

10.2 Transfers and Reassignments

All administrators will be notified in writing of their assignment for the forthcoming school year not later than June 1 of a given year.

- In the event that changes in assignments are required after such written notification is given, the administrator involved will be notified in writing.
- Administrators requesting a transfer or reassignment should communicate in writing directly to the Superintendent. It is understood that such transfers are made at the sole discretion of the Board of Education upon recommendation of the Superintendent.

Article 11 EVALUATION

11.1 Copies of Report

Each employee shall sign all copies of each written evaluation, attesting to the fact that the contents are known to him/her. This signature is required but does not necessarily imply agreement with the evaluation. Further, each administrator shall receive a copy of each written evaluation.

Employees shall be evaluated in accordance with law and regulation N.J.S.A. 18A:6-123 and N.J.A.C. 6:10.

11.2 Right of Employee to Respond

A conference shall be arranged between the evaluator and the employee as soon as possible after receipt of the written evaluation by the employee in compliance with N.J.A.C. 6A:10. At such time, the administrator is entitled to have his response to the evaluation heard and appended to the evaluation report.

11.3 Notice of Contract Renewal

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:27-4.1, those administrators who are to be renewed shall receive a written offer of a contract from the Board of Education by May 15th. Those non-tenured administrators who are not to be renewed shall receive, also by May 15th, a written notice from the Superintendent that such employment will not be offered. In the latter case, no Board of Education action is necessary and such administrator shall be deemed non-renewed.

Article 12 SALARIES

- 12.1 Salaries of all administrators covered by this agreement are set forth in Appendix A which is attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement.
- 12.2 All administrators shall be paid on a twelve (12) month basis in twenty-four semi-monthly installments.
- 12.3 Any change in the length of the work year made by the Board of Education will result in the use of a prorated salary.

- 12.4 When a payday falls on or during a school holiday, vacation or weekend, administrators shall receive their paychecks on the last previous working day.
- 12.5 Salary increases from one year to the next are not automatic. An increase in salary must receive the endorsement of the Superintendent that an individual's work has been satisfactory for the school year preceding the salary increase consideration. Administrators whose work fails to show evidence of continued professional improvement and whose work does not receive the approval of the Superintendent will not be granted a salary increase.
- 12.6 Administrators hired after February 1st of the calendar year shall not receive a salary increase the following school year.

Article 13 EMPLOYMENT

- 13.1 The Board agrees to hire only certified administrators for every regular administrative position.
- 13.2 The first year salary of each newly hired administrator shall be determined by the Board.
- 13.3 Salaries for all employees shall be in accordance with and on a specific step of the salary guide.

Article 14 NON-ADMINISTRATIVE DUTIES

The Board and the Association acknowledge that an administrator's primary duties and responsibilities are supervisory and directed to the improvement of instruction and the efficient operation of the total plant.

Article 15 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT

- 15.1 The Board of Education recognizes that it shares responsibility with its professional staff for their continued professional development. The Board and the Association support the principle of continuing training of administrators to enhance the educational improvement of instruction. The Board will set aside \$20,000 per contract year for the purposes of Professional Development for:
 - A. Tuition Reimbursement, and
 - B. Workshops, Seminars, Conferences, and other such Sessions
 - C. Mentor Fees

15.2 <u>Tuition Reimbursement</u>

College courses, which relate to an administrator's assignment in the Middlesex School District and which have been approved by the Superintendent, are eligible for reimbursement up to the Rutgers University graduate school tuition rate. To be eligible for tuition reimbursement (a) the institution shall be a duly authorized institution of higher education as defined in section 3 of P.L. 1986, c.87 (C.18A:3-15.3); (b) the employee shall obtain approval

from the superintendent of schools prior to enrollment in any course; and (c) the course or degree must be related to the employee's current or future job responsibilities in Middlesex School District, as determined by the Superintendent. Once college courses have been approved by the Superintendent, funds shall be encumbered for future payment upon submission of required documents as outlined in Article 15.

- An administrator who expects to be reimbursed for a course or courses shall:
 - a. Prior to taking the course or courses, submit in duplicate to the Superintendent an application for approval to take courses eligible for tuition reimbursement. One (1) copy of the application form will be returned to the Administrator within ten (10) school days stating approval or lack of approval. The application forms (Tuition Reimbursement Form A) may be obtained from the building principal or the Superintendent.
 - b. Submit a reimbursement form to the office of the Superintendent for approval by June 5th. Application forms (Tuition Reimbursement Form B) may be obtained from the building principal or the Superintendent.
 - c. Submit a paid receipted bill from the college/university showing the tuition charges.
 - d. Submit an official transcript or a registrar's grade statement covering the course taken by June 15th. (Until an official transcript is received, a computer printout from the college is acceptable for processing.)
 - e. Fill out and sign a Board voucher.
 - f. Requests for extensions to the required submission dates outlined herein shall be submitted, in writing, to the Superintendent. Extensions shall only be granted by the Superintendent for valid reasons.
- The administrator must obtain at least a B or a Pass in a Pass/Fail Course in order to be eligible for reimbursement. Reimbursement will be limited to twelve (12) credits per year for tenured administrators and nine (9) credits per year for non-tenured administrators.
- A "return service obligation" is required under which administrators will continue to work in the Middlesex School District for one (1) calendar year. If they fail to return to work for the Middlesex Board of Education, they will reimburse the district for the money received through the deduction from their last paycheck(s), or through some other legal means. Any money returned to the Board will be added to the next year's reimbursement budget. If an administrator is terminated, reduced in force, or permanently disabled or dies and cannot complete the above one (1) calendar year of

work, the requirement of returning tuition money to the Board will be waived.

15.4 Workshops, Seminars, Conferences, or other such Sessions

The Board of Education will pay for reasonable expenses (including fees, meals, lodging and/or transportation) incurred by an administrator's participation in seminars, workshops, conferences and conventions in accordance with the requirements issued by New Jersey Office of Management and Budget (NJOMB).

15.5 Mileage

The Board of Education will provide each building and district administrator mileage reimbursement for travel on district business, and district-wide responsibilities mileage reimbursement in accordance with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:11-12 and the regulations promulgated thereunder in accordance with the requirements issued by New Jersey Office of Management and Budget (NJOMB).

15.6 Professional Associations

The Board of Education will reimburse each administrator full cost of membership in appropriate professional organizations. Total payment for all memberships shall not exceed two thousand (\$2,000).

Article 16 DURATION

- 16.1 This agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2017 and shall continue in effect to and including June 30, 2018.
- 16.2 In witness whereof, the Board and the Association have caused this Agreement to be signed by their respective presidents, attested to by their respective secretaries, and their seals to be placed hereon, all on the day and year noted below.

TRAINING LEVELS

The Board shall pay an annual pensionable amount added to an employee's base salary in recognition for advanced training levels. Credits shall be earned at an institution of higher learning accredited with NJ.A.C. 6A;9-1.

Doctorate - \$1,200

BOARD OF EDUCATION

ASSOCIATION

President

Secretary

7/23/18

1

A Parrey

7 23/18

APPENDIX A

| | Midd | dlesex Administ | rators and Supe | ervisors Salary C | Guide 2018 -201 | 9 | |
|-----------|---------|-----------------|-----------------|-------------------|-----------------|---------|------------|
| STEP | HSP | MSP | ESP | DIR | APHS | APMS/AD | Supervisor |
| Off Guide | | | | | 134,542 | | |
| 13 | 150,675 | 145,290 | 138,174 | 133,169 | 132,897 | 126,546 | 123,554 |
| 12 | 149,580 | 143,600 | 136,259 | 131,796 | 131,251 | 125,277 | 122,656 |
| 11 | 148.485 | 141,910 | 135,202 | 130,423 | 129,606 | 124,009 | 121,757 |
| 10 | 147,389 | 140,221 | 134,206 | 128,759 | 127,960 | 122,741 | 120,859 |
| 9 | 146.294 | 138,531 | 133,209 | 127,386 | 126,314 | 121,473 | 119,961 |
| 8 | 144,452 | 136,841 | 132,213 | 126,013 | 124,669 | 120,205 | 118.450 |
| 7 | 142,609 | 135,151 | 131,213 | 124,640 | 123,023 | 118,937 | 116,939 |
| 6 | 140,766 | 133,459 | 130,396 | 123,267 | 121,378 | 117,669 | 115.428 |
| 5 | 138,923 | 132,086 | 129,340 | 121,894 | 119,732 | 116,400 | 113,917 |
| 4 | 137,080 | 130,396 | 128.343 | 120,521 | 118,086 | 115,132 | 112,405 |
| 3 | 135,236 | 128,706 | 127,347 | 119,148 | 116,441 | 113,864 | 110.894 |
| 2 | 133,396 | 127,017 | 126,350 | 117,775 | 114,795 | 112,596 | 109,385 |
| 1 | 131.596 | 125,317 | 125,350 | 116,375 | 113,195 | 111,396 | 107,885 |

| CTCD | and the second s | | | | Suide 2019 -202 | T | |
|-----------|--|---------|---------|---------|-----------------|---------|------------|
| STEP | HSP | MSP | ESP | DIR | APHS | APMS/AD | Supervisor |
| Off Guide | | | | | 138,309 | | |
| 13 | 153,768 | 147,621 | 140,074 | 135,486 | 134.926 | 128,785 | 126,090 |
| 12 | 152,642 | 145.884 | 138,988 | 134,075 | 133,234 | 127,482 | 125,167 |
| 11 | 151,516 | 144,147 | 137.964 | 132,364 | 131,543 | 126.178 | 124,243 |
| 10 | 150,390 | 142,410 | 136.939 | 130,953 | 129,851 | 124.874 | 123,320 |
| 9 | 148,496 | 140,672 | 135,915 | 129,541 | 128.159 | 123.571 | 121,767 |
| 8 | 146,602 | 138.935 | 134,887 | 128,130 | 126,468 | 122,267 | 120,213 |
| 7 | 144,707 | 137,196 | 134,047 | 126,718 | 124,776 | 120,963 | 118,660 |
| 6 | 142,812 | 135,785 | 132,962 | 125,307 | 123,084 | 119,660 | 117,106 |
| 5 | 140,918 | 134,047 | 131,937 | 123,895 | 121,393 | 118,356 | 115,553 |
| 4 | 139,023 | 132,310 | 130,913 | 122,484 | 119,701 | 117,052 | 113,999 |
| 3 | 137.132 | 130,573 | 129,888 | 121.072 | 118,009 | 115,749 | 112.448 |
| 2 | 135,281 | 128.826 | 128,860 | 119,633 | 116,364 | 114,515 | 110,906 |
| 1 | 133,481 | 127,126 | 127,860 | 118,233 | 114,764 | 113,315 | 109,406 |